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fafd R0¢2l0c12% A YEHAR THR TH HEITeh]
Hoaiod WHfdel e¢ S dSwedl  HUETER
wR ey off e wwr e fafq, e T
T 1 e sehe T fHuiE e S e
TUHISG T IR T HTaee T a1 Rageiehehl
yfaffegrn Sufted g7 SRRl @1 A A
YERITIT TRUH D |

fafd: o< W@ 9 2o T FHAR

WM: HSHUS Afehs HoW, AR, THR
(afeewdls &)

g fogm gg & |

2.2 HodTeh HiHdH THATE FEFR] AEHETIZN
I B HEAR MF.0c0/0¢? H dlMbSH
gfdere IW BEHS T qRA T |

THAIRI M. 0lo/0¢? T W TRETHH
yfadaed Tfeden arge, A% Ao fedqme T
TS YaTE ToaRor qem ST qraf-od Sqg=iee
Ra T |

TR 3. 04/0¢R Tl BT YRETU THeA
ST SEIRET wfafae fawmit smifss S
TReTeReR Ffe T et wiefie de
SEIETd off T9 WNHUeH a1de ThSuevey
AMA. 0¢/o¢R T BT URETT Yidaed TR
T A7 3IED)

2R

2R

STYLY STgLaReTehl ek qTRsifier Yfaen drem
T |

STEIATGh] IR F[SHRIGINT kI T TehReh!
e IUHUeE WRe T faveafta wme
el HAeA T YT, e 9a Hareed
STEIHAT TR B S 99d @RS Ta

ST USRS 91 hl ST AT U4 &

R

RR

Fers fafi= Sehggere el foe St et
T, R0§3 Tl THI Qo4 (W) THINH TS
[igfaer R e[ T |

FHIG IR [GHRAe G0 S99 AU
fafyr= sheat/sTeudre/RIsTor Heomge qen 31 359d
TUH (BTSS! TSN, YIOR TSI, T 32N ) ST
faf= Foes @Re TH 99T I FAIEEH
IORET B T Todioe Hdor SAHeR I8
T |

9. THfd J0¢9/0%/08 T TG R0¢2/0%/20 TTd TH
FHER IR TIge @RS o< S | |19,
UG Weh Ta=— fosfqesar fafd 30¢9/0¢/93
Td T N .fefa. SRER 1€ 99 FrEE IR
S @RS SN T g SR ST
TRHEEERE JH TIHN0 GHh  JASR
BT AT HIH TS |

. HTHO GHTeRl YT T Sfefen fererr QrereTeR
Tt foRdTem T SIH T@ehl Email ST U3ES
T T HATER IR AR T website:

www.kmc.edunp o HERO 9w g fAfq
T ST e © |

3. Ol G SRRy 991 qE g1 ¥ Hu
3T Regeierant gfaffy o7 (dredt) sheoient
TS FHGIHT Tl TGS H=Idl [G6S |
et Trael} 3T SHeTes o et U

T TRl FEHESt 1789 g9 |

Y. HERO 99 gl T SR @I
FHEATR T FATed, FAHTE HeArel
(FrTT Ffaehl hEied ) | §Fdeh T8 ST
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HoaTod HiHfdeh RS
FHT giad
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Combo Biplane CATH LAB for Cardio and
Vascular treatment

KMC Health Camp 1st-MCH Batch of Gl Surgery/Urology
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HaTos Aol Thare HrRIGRT ALAEERT &4 it gfaag:

ST IFRYAT ARTHTIEE,

FHISHTS! HfShe shessten Tt STftieh TR0 FHH |
A 6 HaTesh HiHfaeh Toul Ieegsen aheTe
TS GHIBSHT JUfterd g |9MT Wit fog g wvgof
BLR G B G D B o o e | S TS 2 IR |
WA T =18 |

forma el ad <fa fafehear frem €= e wTa
e A oY =Ry o gien 9o wEET et
B | G Afeho HOEEOE THIES Ffaide
qUH SIS ASTIS J8ReE g I @i |
foma o od Tfe Were famnedt v=f @i e
eI TRl TSl T Yok WHA SITH [
IO SHFERM B | T0 08 TRUH e aFiTh
FTH T T eh 379 A U RreehAr yoek foq
TAE I AAhl caE A Wal wedror fafa
TIHT T2 T FAEE AU |

Tfehe wosThl THI0 JeiERee 90 T fomefiggen
JSTUISA e TRGH T Foseiehl THT Ui T

AR FUiFerE TRIGER {0, Fosl S
Hored B A AT fewrae gooh et 7 o,
ST &15 TReR S THT hIHEEh! hal g3 01 < a9
foraer e fafit= e % Amha T ehe ufe
fafi= TRRaTe e T SAfheedT Jdel Y=
T T qARHERE THA T H FH Sl R
MR TR 68l | STEdaiesl 9ar T 9l
SAGHRT oy Y T FATe TRehl B | 3T
TS STIEATHT U I HEATh! HATGTh! SHHAT THIS
frfolaa demeeer s Ufg Joadar sT9erE o«
e YA T I TRH B -

Tq wemeh TRAw 3R

. UH HEATH HEAUR U1 HATGHTYRLh el
emEre SIFIRa § I TURaiE e
f31eT Tem TS gou e el g T ufad
3EYFS TR GIETE USZehl ShI STHITSH
= GOl 99 FEeh 7Y Y 3T |

R. TR ol fammel qeun sfwEeTgEee a9
e i <@y Wushl A T fovar |

2.

2R

IR

R

LR

FaaRl HerRes o™ T 90 I9
HEATRl AT |

fafi= T Heres afafas gepgepyol grest
Fifq fduTes, WeordR qU YufHairehl
FfETU HoowReE, HEAS SR el
3TIfefeh STTIMET T SHOETTA UETeh! HIH ISR
fafera afommere = ween Rfam Fwm e
T |

FEAE Ufews FHowl O dHae EEEE
Torem e T STEM g X Bl 9 PhashaTTes
A gogem omuiia W fEER fawm 3
TORRHT STIER HELgehl STHRRT RIS A6

fama e o <fg Afers FowET TEtem
o FIM T AU o W o
aTfefer Hehe o AT AT e e qu
IS T T ol 4 S | g SvEihedl
T GBI vhahl I TrIg A1 gReTeht o Teeh gt
HAOTE HELH HTH B |

A o fafa= fremaerl feees fafv=
FIAHHGEH! STTHAH BT Y FHRATE HiSHD
foremmenr SR 33 forwaRER! gy T 9
TY HSSTH U Ush TRETI uah |

=t FAReToE SR howey 7 shoeH uH fo fo vy
TB 200 e, o feT@ % vo fe, o wm . Afdg
T Yo g1 fae, [ 13, R0, THE THUT % W&
el T I T The I B |

g I8 a9 DM/M.Ch 99 srfhd e
TF 0% THAT & I Fo2 U T4 THS YT
B | W9 WA DM Perioperative Crtitical
Care — 1 792, DM Neonatology — 1, M.Ch
Neurosurgery — 2, M.Ch Urology -1, M.Ch
Gastroenterology — 1, DM Pulmunology 1,
DM Nephrology 1 T DM Cardilogy-1

T FSIS TS FATSTH ol AfeTeh FRHTes,
g 9 97 E ATk FEHTEE T A o
HAGT T TR Wl FwrshAee FEER
Tl SR TRISH Fe-

uetil anies urddger coco/eocq | 9



1. MBBS 100

2. BDS 40

3. B.Sc. Nursing 50

4, MD/MS 76

5. BNS Not Applied
6. M. Sc. Nursing 4

7. MDS 2

8. DM/M..Ch 9

9. BPT 20

10. MDS Oral Medicine &Radiology 1

11. BMLT 30

12. BMIT 30

13. M.Sc Clinical Microbology 2

14. M.Sc Clinical Biochemisty 2

Ry IH wien sum faftha 9edeT ¥ aRemse o TT T fafTT feudi=mes =EX

R

dIeeh I9 oSl O fauTTeese gared
U fafa= wifae weshaee FEar W

BRI

%) Fos o= fawreesm 0 I
o1 dfc fafrs  weegel  fawemem
CME/Workshop &% SeTe TRUa © T
CPC =R 9 |

@) wou wERd  ReTdeee A qen
AW SHoeeH Yo o Y=< €@
HIIEE JHRM T YT B |

) I Foue  Journal of Kathmandu
Medical College =X ¥9HT (online)
YR e TR B |

) 99 99 Foed Gra= faureem fafa=
ey fowreedn wEfud ufed qen
AW Wbl TGH  hHeEH
Ao MRUGA S | A wEHESE 99
SeoEd AlfeHes M SHIfSH W &1 ¢

TH FOSH HEE §o AT HHUNIEESE T3

e 4 W Basic Critical Care Training

TS TRUH B |

o ITH T AT He Whed, INSUS,
TTeEdhl qo S HHARIEEH I
Basic & Advanced Life Support

Training FR=R F0 YA ™ FrieR
Freaan foswan ©

| Totit anfas wrddger coco/e0cq

Teerers g Tiferss fagd! | T Tfoase 5
Talk Program on Communication Skill
by Internatioanl Speaker from Australia,
world Physiotherapy Day Celebration,
CME of Nepal Paediatris society
nutrition chapter, CPRR (Child
Protection recongintion) response of
by Nepas, CME of Dietician talk on

malnutrition ShHE% YU T |

o JH FHooHl FEA TERX qA AHS
FHaRIgER@rE Complementary feeding
practices Training IS s TRITH B |

e IH HowHl Breast feeding week
celebration ™ HHAT Breast Feeding
Training e | foenefl wHeRiceoR
TeM TS TRAT | WY Panal Disscussion
on lactaion Management TR |

Medical Education Department €<
/=1 Faculty Deveploment Program
TR |

e ¥ fa1 Teacher's Training Program ¥wad
el T U D |

e 3 fe9 Research & Publication Ethics
Workshop %l qeieh G901 YT S |

e 3 fe@ Assessment and Evaluation
Workshop ¥%ed gefe T8 YTH |

9.6 I e faia aues Ifan feeehl Linnaeus
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University, Linkoping University, University
of  Skovde, Gothenberg  University,

el Norwegian University of Science &
Technology, g e T SaEE Kobe
Universtiy ¥ Tohuku University, Denmark
University 991 University of New England,
Australia ®7T Collaboration & fafa=
SfeTeh q ATHFHSE HRHT TR W

T | T@ 99 Fows University of West of
England, Bistrol (UWE), UK, Harvard T.H.
Chan School of Public Health, Harvard
University, Boston, USA, University of
Texas Health, USA University of Oxford

UK, Uviveristy of licester UK &7 fafa=
SifeTeh AT ST F I ST FehIdh
&AM TRehl B | IHH T@El I, HRH
A 3T I Hisho oo fomneiies
THA I9 Hoe Elective Course TH  3T=A
T B | T@ g% aied foq faemedtees
&AM gig vetedl ad1 1 ada fod e
THT IRASH TR S |

ifTeh T R0¢¢ T ¢R A TH.fa fa.0q % Qoo
fefafetg @ vo fae, Mo . aig
wo g e T fa.fafe. 30 e yra 7+ wwe S |
W& IT 033 &2 Pedodontics / Oral
Medicine & Radiology fa9rm™r  (Post
Graduate) FEHA FA@TH B J&ad U9
TR T |

Bachelors in BMLT / BMIT s&shHen Uf
TEET TR T BSHoR SHHHT Whl B |

2.20 Pulmonology and Nephrology, Cardiology

W DM %A Haodd @M Wied 98
FHREHH YT T8 TH d9 0%% W S DM
Cardiology HEIHHAT WAl VTR B |

2.2% Heuel favafoanead ag sosee "Ll

Bl Shesst <M Mch. Plastic Surgeon SeITGA
T U@ HoS §T TR I TEH DR
T =ES) |

2.93 SIS UMW % aNerel fomagemr MDS (Post

Graduate) FREHH HATGTH @R Wiegd W8

FHRHY YT TR B | MDS Prosthodontics,

%
Rl

Endodontics, Pedodontics, Oral and
Maxillofacial Surgery #1 foreneffee stearra

ezl

2% GAThIeHT Tgehl Skill Lab @8 fafy=1 faume

YSTURBTH ST Tt T i T T
Tfertan B |

2.94 BUZS WU 3T=WTd Ceramic Lab = TATIAT

T ToaTed TR Giehtehl © |

QRETH TS UG WHREE Autopsy Hal

Hfgasl Medicolegal ¥l Haled T+ STIHT
I T W YA ST Wehl B | A Fel
Y% W¢ qverd e faenefferer st HeargeH
T AT Zaeieh Al AaHeHR
BN T IS T IS HiHies Afstaq fas=mn

MD SHEERY GHd ToaioTHqT Wohl © |

.29 Howare TAfHd TOH Peer Review

Indexed Journal of Kathmandu Medical
College (JKMC) JhI¥d Wg<gehl SR
TRRA 8-S | Feue Afewo Hoe IRaR
IO YR Fossl e War ¥ gerTeehl qaad
HOHT TSR TRISH YA FH S TTHT SET
News Letter “KMC Times” 91 frafiya o
R TS HAh! BIAHT TIh |

2.2 TH FHOSThl  alfYhIcaddhl STTEHT  he3SThl

foeneffeeer 1w gfa fyuRa = e
SIeEd FAES Iod IS [aiTded auaeH]
& MBBS, B.Sc Nursing @1 BDS & St
fTenefieeorR e YoM T+ HEerR Fad
fee Sport week, Reserch Grant ST&iT ER I
e fSsuahl © | 61 STaERAT STy
HH T B ko] HSEIRE, AfHE qo1 311
FHARICEOT Ui I3 TRUH B |

2.2% MBBS Sif&Ten sreishmant 3% i Wgen ¢8 S

foremeffeees etf<m aftem foushmn wo dfterd
forameffe® 3fol W =9 | B.Sc Nursing %
Ry, i T o T formneffes sif<m wRem
HHS WA Srayferd 3fdor waen =9 | BDS
FRHT T Gl wEe faeneffge ¥ S
forameffee wed 3w S Sfdor M woH B
I IR ¢3.3 TS | a9 |8 MD/MS

uetil anies wiadger coco/eocd | 3
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TH 030132 A &3 51 foremefiee aRemn
gie  vuHE vaufied  faeneffere  eif<m
TReT ol e &1 WY MSc. Nursing F ¢
S Frafia wegen wagfoera foemedfese aften
3feofes aRkem Sfeol Tem =1 |

T HSTehl TIIETOT STEIdTeEh! Hellehl IS
FUR T YRl TRNORE 9Hd dese oM
YIS AfET STafmr fafa= guren Friee
TR B |

Al foRmfleeed Hel QAR @I
AqH AW E. goh fowe W wEH W
fosroe fafrcasreegmn faem @ o Tf@ =ie
y o9 T A1 fe T gearen Rus e
foRHiEeeR 9eM TRA Hame! TR GuR
TR @I TR fafecdsseets ua T qen
31 Grelsifeh e faaam aft waR ggdm
TG T Hoarod TRUH S |

et faur firg faurmr Tom ¥E 9u
f@ 3 I TR SR e Seoe HEAH
forrieeeR ¥ AERH FRUG & TS
o1 faarer gg ohfudie Sfaa sgaen T
HYAUTE T WA oo gfaHl Yed
TRTH B | @S [g9RTEe Thrombolysis,
Plasmapheresis ST9R ¥al UeH T T
TREH B |

T fRreTor e A, <, TR,
WA BUAA ST T TR CTShl
AR @I foies s M B |
BISSIAT T ¥ ST fa9nTe BTET ST
S=drg%ehl @I Bilateral Pelvic Osteotomy
and Repair for Bladder Dytrophy ST&T =hfa™
HeIiee i T T STaEATehl SISl TRUGH B |

fogmor sToudresdl e fowR T R
gfg ufd = gEee a@ew @i =ifed

Video Laparoscope,

Video Endoscopy,
Gastroscope, Cautery Machine, Holmium
Laser, Anesthesia Machine, Ultrasound
Machine, Dialysis Machine, OT Table,
OT Light, Bipolar Resectoscope, Flexible

| Totit anfas wrddger coco/e0cq
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R\

RL

Ureteroscope, Vessel Sealer Cautery,
Harmonic Scalpel ,Cath Lab,CT,MRI 3Tr<t
ST HgeqUl ITRUREeRl WiE TR Herar
TG TS TR TSTH © |

T el foammhl SaT areer AHa e g
T Tt 35 SRR B qur afefam fawm
% RS ASH THd YR, smyfferaor I
fomr o T e g W e gEe ™
HfehTahl |

syt gfereftRl ¢’ cylinder 9fd faa
Oxygen STIIGH T+ &THAT {1 Oxygen
Plant =R S99 Hare- {%q;l |

RSt faarm sy Taew ufger
qelifess A SeM T = Ty IT=rHm
FHRIGT Gl TR |

SRl T TIE 9R fBd ¥ Wo aikwe
e Tl S FIBRO SCAN e R oM
Flexible Nasopharyngro Laryngoscopy,
ENT 9S4y Toeh ggel aigl HTeh
AT SRA T HiGTee Ser W Hared

TESH |

R} AR R ATAoeE Y ST AT Is

R.2R Forensic Medicine

e Hdled T faddt W U,
(COVID-19 &l HHHU 93=1d) BTS3 %6 H HuT
ER ¥ fafy= afex faurmes deme vEw@e |

.20 THHTSHT Toqdre qen TFehl IR SEeITeR

AT F9 eI STSUeR § U9 QY AT
o YHI 23 TM (3u3R.R0 A HA) S
AT T ekl 9o @RS TRTHMAT IH YaT6e
FOSH FAM Hg Whl T W oswm e
T SIfeUshl T 91 SIEUan SR 83 i
qifehgenl TqHT =R feuan ® |

2.22 §& Blood Bank HTGTH FHA STTH B |

S=TId geehleH
NMC / KIST Medical College %1 MBBS
forenefiee@te autopsy practical TRIEEH S |

.23 R I Mortuary machine YT&MT ¥ & Afg

STHAT 4 o2 HE R 9 gaTeRleHT UaTs v1d T&
e TR |



R.2% { T A X-ray machine 9 A BTG
oY 3 o T ST TR i HaTe T T 3Th!
ER 57 71 STgM 79 91 STIfE deahl B |

2.4 Cath lab HaT FaT% WE 8@ HAGTH Wl B |

R.2& Kidney transplant &l ¥d1 AT W3 BS L
g3 T G YUH B T Liver Transplant EQ)
WM fog o gare T STl © |

2.2y T1& 1 fgumm Fever profile, Leptospira IgG/
IgM, K 39, Brucella Antigen, Scrub typhus,
TPHA, Cholinesterase level, HBSAG/ HIV/
HCV — CLIA, Serum Magnesium level,
ENA Screening test, COVID Antigen test,
COVID IgG/ IgM, Serum Lipase, Urinary
Sodium/ Potassium, Urine for toxicology,

H pylori Antibody, H pylori Antigen, Serum
Cortisol, Anti CCP, Anti ds- DNA, D-dimer,
IL-6 (Interleukin- 6), Procalcitonin, Serum
Lactate, PCR for COVID 19 SGHH

qReTorer 9f g TR S |
R.%¢ ot faurmeR TRt T Endourology,
Laproscopic ~ Urology, = Urooncology,

Reconstructive Urology, Open Urology,
Andrology, RIRS ST ¥a6e UM TRIH
Y erenyfi gfafugs (Prostate, Bipolar
TURBT, Laser PCNL, BNI, OIU) @I
FANEE Retrograde Intrarenal ¥em 9 3E
TR B |

R.4R STHAT® HATGTE 9% §&& U MiDas Hospital
Management Software @8 Upgrade Tt o
EFH Haed T ekl © T TRod fawen

IS d% SIS TS el © |

R.30 TGS HATSTs & ekt U&l QRT (Quick
Response Team), VCC (Visitor Counseling
Cell), OPD token system SaTGHT STTH B |
T ?XWDutyOﬂicesaﬁaWTlﬁ@@? |

R B TS FEA@H oo WS ICU, %o
o€ NICU T %0 o€ PICU, Emergency
observation ward R0 &€, Emergency ICU
g0 o€ T Endoscopy suite Hal &= TR

A% TR GfhTahl © |

R.R TAHTe wiid €= afgd faum expansion
S SHHAT 97 ¥ 9 S FaE T 73 Lo el
Seo R dereT Wl | Ed ST
geftefterl RVG (Radio- Visio- Graphy) A&
I SR U B | IY W AT fm
Radiology section HT art CBCT advance
implant FEIHAT T FHATHT TG |

.3 FoNe W Yo &5 BfEs TRehl i
HeEraHT =R Wl © :

aIfgtg el MSEIA
g Ta (forredt ot o) CRRICA
MIRER A
SIS CATEHRTRTE

% e 20,4%,%¢
TH.27.3TE, 9.3 @ T

4 T 1 Yo¥go
STCIISUS, THITHT qT

& | o aReETRE SRAAR

ST THHHE T STBIHTE

JY FoSo e qor wWRed dqar i A

geor U Sfash TEEe WY SFNfe desg T

ALASTE Y TS =T ST Hreeers

3TMTE TeSe STl Bl STHFH & JUH

TEAqUl $RiEe FHAER Wl o1

3.4 I9 Foss  Nuffield Department of
Rheumotology and Musculosketal Sciences
(NDORMS) Univerisity of oxford, UK
HHa 033 IR 0% TH AR TR A
HIPCARE fos&ieh 1794 % Tl © |

3.3 U HLEhHR TS T FHSIos TS S
fod Yt T wos TfiER § T aw
WE YUR Hhd <M U fther Tforreve
T ST FHAAH WY TR B
T O ST Finding frafia aoere
FIGHT Ufed T SOHGH g TS
el (Dissemination)|

uetil anies Wadger ooco/eoca | Y,
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33 gAafdd o9 I 1% Feuve, famedmal 3¢ T T Og fesdeE A, sTavergtel R

HEHEAH! STTIHH DT T, 6. TH. IR,
e ged RHd YUgm AureH  =iedesh
M HSOR A ST U T e
RH B | TISH TS GREMeh! et gRfera
USSR ST AT Frefiehaes ufear
T TASETASR oo scd Ufed TUe
foed e FE%EN eE STeH 9w
T FETE= YU B | JE ST Hsehl
TRl BRft T o8 TH 3R a1 A "Safe
Systems" Approach for Enabling Traffice
Injury Prevertion in Nepal (SAFETIP
Nepal) FEI®H ST R033/30%& I BFI
STIHI ST U TTHT T |

3.x THadt Afgemty g féan fovg gwnyd =

R

RS

3\

%

NTNU, ¢ ¥ FdfTe SI7ar aRkeg Arhd
FIFRO Grant I %% & gT YH S |
Norway ®%&®R&®l NORHED FUND 3T=iid
FSHIE! Aicwho wHoe RIS steze
STEATIH THHT HEART 1 grant SUGSH T
® | Linnaeus University Sweden, RajShahi
University, Bangladesh STl ST{HT TST&
o T @I e Warare Red a5e
Y I HTH B |

79 Y T Fosien &1 RifeTergsen dhee
993 a1, faemeffesadl ahaR Qow aar T A
ALl HEATEERT THSIE &R T TR STHHT 338 T
STTHYThl J&ATee IH h3sTehl Institutional
feeepfd  greM

Review Committee HThd
TRUH |

I8 woee  University of Skovde and
University of Gothenburg, Sweden W%hd
03¢ Tf@ 4 a¥Ew @I Digital health
promotion in schools a serious games
approach  for cardiovascular  health
education in Nepal fowas STITER
T feguahl © 1

TG HosSThl HISSHIETAIGST  qel STaehHE!
faummr /2 g1 o e T iR
B

| Totit anfas wrddger coco/e0cq

Jorden e favafaemeg @1 @ o ™
HAR AL G T (R0R(R0R9) =l B HATHHM
I SR fFar fgua © |

.2 ftea fafeean forsm U7 o we fafeaa foem

¥ .

%.3

R4

RN

%.&

STREINTRI Ted HWehles Tafohean frgmmehl wegof
e e fafean foem s @A
TTH B | 9l AN HISHS FhorsTgsehl BRI
BT SATRAT Yok T T qar Sifere oo
R033/R3 A @M BARAT Id [ERE TR
Yooh MR A 99 Foshl SN 9wl
1% &1 Yo 7@ g TR B | 99 fiere
FOSOTE fesehion Toar e @l RS
S T S < |

3F. Roco/¢? W UM BHIG B R &9d
TR O ¥R TR qUl AUH SR kel
YT T S LR B T T TY TS 43
TG TSRS WBITH Bf | A FH@ A ST 3.
0£0/¢2 AT E. ] HUS 30 TG Wbl AT |

fafq=1 fcdrg den AMR=adr g seNs
SMA. R0¢0/¢R AT FHOSIs Y fghl TATH
T. 19,20 4,68 3TTSIA T T&H HUH T |
Qoo Y Hfed TATHT B SIS hioHl T& fuia
TR B |
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Dev Assoclates

Chartered Accountants

Patan Dhoka, Loktpur-3
PO Box 2%2
Laktpar DPO 44700
Nepal

T: 4977 (1) 5421605
F: +977 (1) 5420976

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Gevassociates@etc net np

To the Shareholders of www. bakectillydev.com
Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the "Group") which comprise the Consolidated statement
of financial position as at Ashadh end 2081, the Consolidated statement of profit or loss, and the
Consolidated other comprehensive income, Consolidated statement of changes in equity and
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the Consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position and performance of the Group for the period FY 2080/81 in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statement in Nepal, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.,
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in cur
audit of the financial statements of the cumrent period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters

to communicate in our report.
Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Report of Board of Directors pursuant to Section 109(4) of Companies Act, 2063, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

whrch are seperate and independent legal entities. 1t & registered a3 8 partnership firm in the Institute of Chartered Acco

regstraton no. 230 and with PAN 600430025
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In connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibility is 10 read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financlal
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the prevailing accounting practices, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concem basis of accounting uniess the management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of financial statements, whether due o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than that for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, wearoroqukedtodtawattemmnouraudws
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such dis
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence ob
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the G&
to continue as a going concem.
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We eomtwnm with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our examination of the Consolidated financial statements as per the Group's Act, we repont

that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit

b. The accounts and records of the Group have been maintained as required by law and practice in a
manner as to reflect the real affairs of the Group.

¢. The statement of Consolidated financial position, Consolidated statement of profit or loss and
Consolidated other comprehensive income and the Consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account of the Group, and these statements follow
prevailing accounting standards.

d. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
Board of Directors, we did not come across any such instances where the representative or any
omployudﬂnGmphasactedoon&aquepmbbndbwmlaﬁngtomuamd
diedlossadamagalomestwpdebemiyotadedmamneerouldjeopam'uem
interest and security of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 Ashadh 2081

Group KMC
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property Plant & Equipments 5.1 3,739,868,718 3,859,145,108| 2,395,322,260 2,543,913,784
Capital Work in Progress 5.1 - 16,618,793 - 16,618,793
Goodwill - - -
Investments 52 - - 374,012,197 364,012,197
Other Non Current Assets 53 19,810,519 19,810,519 19,810,519 19,810,519
Total Non Current Assets 3,759,679,237 3,895,574,421| 2,789,144,976 2,944,355,293
Current Assets
Inventories 54 54,548,540 48,619,809 9,151,787 8,732,842
Other Current Assets 5.5 986,425,454 196,033,339 946,516,682 206,172,457
Cash & Cash Equivalents 5.6 42,408,336 23,852,211 34,404,632 18,020,875
Current Tax Assets 5.7 48,197,379 50,988,247 34,240,008 37,186,963
Total Current Assets 1,131,579,709 319,493,606 | 1,024,313,108 270,113,136
Total Assets 4,891,258,945 4,215,068,027 | 3,813,458,084 3,214,468,429
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 5.8 602,188,640 570,210,406 483,962,363 502,167,832
Short Term Borrowings 5.9 - 147,420,349 - 147,420,349
Other Current Liabilities 5.10 297,452,845 133,081,836 280,492,845 120,461,836
Total Current Liabilities 899,641,485 850,712,591 764,455,207 770,050,017
Non Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowing & Debt | 5.11 2,015,168,000 2,078,675,089| 1,018,368,000 1,063,706,000
Deferred Tax Liabilities 5.12 68,841,389 64,797,949 64,238,797 60,788,539
Deferred Grant Liablities 5.12 15,924,050 19,905,063 15,924,050 19,905,063
Other Non - Current Liabilities | 5.13 1,127,053,406 499,661,778| 1,203,714,306 585,310,551
Total Non Current Liabilities 3,226,986,845 2,663,039,879 | 2,302,245,153 1,729,710,153
Equity
Share Capital 5.14 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
feest:r'ceef eaming & other 5.15 157,959,003 94,640,912 145,802,423 113,752,959
Non Controlling Interest (NCI) 5,716,313 5,719,346 - -
Total Equity and NCI 764,630,616 701,315,557 746,757,723 714,708,259
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,891,258,945 4,215,068,027 | 3,813,458,084 3,214,468,429
Executive Chairperson Director Managing Partner
Dev Associates
Chartered Accountants
Director
Date: 10% Mangsir 2081
Director Director Place: Kathmandu
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the period From 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashadh 2081

Group KMC

Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year
Revenue 5.16| 1,503,964,530 1,214,093,761| 1,108,960,551| 1,070,560,217
Other Income 517| 361,436,696 294,599,962 417,130,737 240,888,005
Total Income 1,865,401,225 1,508,693,724 | 1,526,091,289  1,311,448,222
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 5.18| 281,694,686 125,745,013 102,304,395 68,082,268
Personnel Expenses 5.19| 603,526,734 553,785,627 598,231,299 552,084,804
Administrative Expenses 520| 352,091,125 302,321,125 339,679,973 296,180,245
Depreciation and Amortization 5.21 225,789,279 183,463,918 222,934,835 180,793,152
Finance Costs 522| 261,028,102 269,657,570 158,654,223 151,850,439
Impairment charge(Reversal)
of financial assets measured at 5.21 - -
amortized cost
Total Expenses 1,724,129,926 1,434,973,253 | 1,421,804,725  1,248,990,907
Profit Before Tax 141,271,299 73,720,471 104,286,564 62,457,315
Income Tax Expense 5.23 38,951,438 16,784,071 33,232,298 13,936,831
Current Tax 34,907,998 20,781,617 29,782,040 17,904,199
Deferred Tax 4,043,440 (3,997,547) 3,450,258 (3,967,368)
Profit for the Period 102,319,861 56,936,400 71,054,266 48,520,485

Soina Sharma
Executive Chairperson

Mrs. Homa Devi Neupane
Director

Mr. Sandip Guragain
Director

1% | vetl anfee widdger eocose0cq

Mr. Netra Bandhu Baniya
Director

Mr. Chudamani Bhandari
Director

Rajnish Dahal, FCA
Managing Partner

Dev Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 10 Mangsir 2081
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

NPR

Particulars

Group KMC

Previous Current Previous Previous

b2 | L T G Year Year Year Year

Profit for the year

102,319,861 [56,936,400 |71,054,266 |48,520,485 |100,603,951

Other Comprehensive Income,
Net of Income Tax

a) Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

(Gains)/losses from investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit plans

- - 57463471

Income tax relating to above items

- - (14,365,868)

Net other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising
from translating financial assets of
foreign operation)

Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income
that are or may be reclassified to
profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive
income of associate accounted as
per equity method

Other Comprehensive Income for
the year, Net of Income Tax

Total Comprehensive Income for
the Period

102,319,861 56,936,400 |71,054,266 |48,520,485 |57,506,347

Total Comprehensive Income
attributable to:

Equity-Holders of the Company

102319861.2 /56,936,400 |71,054,266 |48,520,485 |57,506,347

Non-Controlling Interest

Total Comprehensive Income for
the Period

102,319,861 | 56,936,400 |71,054,266 | 48,520,485 | 57,506,347

Soina Sharma
Executive Chairperson

Mrs. Homa Devi Neupane
Director

Mr. Sandip Guragain
Director

Mr. Netra Bandhu Baniya Rajnish Dahal, FCA
Director Managing Partner
Dev Associates
Chartered Accountants

Mr. Chudamani Bhandari Date: 10% Mangsir 2081
Director Place: Kathmandu
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

KMC

Current Year

Previous

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Year

Profit/(Loss) as per Income Statement 141,271,299 73,720,471 104,286,564 62,457,315
Adjustment for Non-Cash and Non

Operating Expenses:

Depreciation 225,789,279 183,463,918 222,934,835| 180,793,152
Finance Income (214,016) (662,997) (147,262) (546,804)
Interest & financial charges 261,028,102 269,657,570 158,654,223 | 151,850,439
Transferred from deferred income (4,164,102) (5,104,675) (4,164,102) (5,104,675)
(Gain)/Loss on sale of fixed assets - - - -
Acturial gain/loss on long service benefit - - - -
Impairment of Goodwill - 23,547,430 - -
Deferred Tax - - - -
Oper:i\ting C?Sh Flow Before Change in 544.621.717

Working Capital 623,710,562 e 481,564,258 | 389,449,427
Working Capital Adjustments:

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets (796,320,846) (45,812,784) (740,763,170)| (14,773,691)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets - 280,500 - 280,500
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities 48,928,894 87,033,530 (5,594,810) 53,287,633
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Liabilities 631,555,729 135,645,362 622,567,857 | 144,405,335
EZ?'.TL'?.?C'Z:\:Z"T’S"M'"Q Activities 507,874,339 721768324\ 357974135 572,649,204
Income tax payment 32,117,130 19,417,153 26,835,085 13,676,495
Net Cash flows from operating activities 475,757,209 702,351,171 330,939,050 | 558,972,709
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant & equipments (89,894,095) (410,001,162) (57,724,517) | (409,329,771)
Increase in Short Term Investment - - (10,000,000) | (10,000,000)
Finance Income 214,016 662,997 147,262 546,804
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (89,680,079) (409,338,165) (67,577,255) | (418,782,967)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

lz;r(];fba:e/ (Decrease) in long term borrowing (63,507,089) 58,237,089|  (45,338,000)| 69,648,000
Payment of interest & financial charges (261,028,102) (269,657,570) (158,654,223)| (151,850,439)
Dividends paid - (38,941,903) (38,821,712)| (38,941,903)
Grant Receipt/Refunded (3,981,013) (3,910,937) (3,981,013) (3,910,937)
Other receipt and payment (39,004,803) (23,776,291) (183,089) (228,862)
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (367,521,006) (278,049,612) | (246,978,037) | (125,284,141)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,556,124 14,963,394 16,383,758 14,905,601
g?iﬁeaggrs‘;h equivalents at the beginning 23,852,211 8,888,818 18,020,875| 3,115,273
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of |, ;45 334 23,852,211 34,404,632| 18,020,875

the period
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Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited (herein referred to as the “Group”) was established in 08,
Shrawan, 2066. Currently, the company has an Authorized and issued capital of NPR 1 billion and a paid-up
Capital of NPR 600.955 million. Its Head Office is situated at Sinamangal, Kathmandu.

Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited provides quality medical education and healthcare services.
Quiality medical education is offered through various medical programs like MBBS, BDS, BPT, BSc. Nursing,
Bachelor in Nursing, Post Graduate Programs.

Likewise, quality healthcare services are offered through the teaching hospital with well-equipped
specialized medical professionals.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements comprise the Kathmandu Medical College Public
Limited(KMC) and its subsidiaries (together referred as Group individually as “Group entities”). The KMC is
ultimate parent of the Group.

KMC Pharmacy & Medical Subsidiary 100% Private Limited which is registered under

Supplies Pvt. Ltd. Companies Act ,2063

Advanced Imaging & Subsidiary 91.12% Private Limited which is register under

Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd Companies Act, 2063

K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 100% Private Limited which is registered under
Companies Act, 2063

Kasthamandap Diagnostic and | Subsidiary 100% Private Limited which is registered under

Medical Service Pvt. Ltd. Companies Act,2063

KMCPharmacy & Medical Supplies Pvt.Ltd.is a private limited company domiciled in Nepal.Itisincorporated
under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2059-08-04. It operates from its registered office situated in ward no-9
Sinamangal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Principal activities of KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplies Pvt. Ltd comprise
of trading in medical and surgical items.

Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd. is a private limited company domiciled in Nepal. It is
incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2064/09/19. The Company has hold 503,000 shares out
of total 552,000 shares of AIDC. It operates from its registered office situated in ward no-9 Sinamangal,
Kathmandu, Nepal. Principal activity of Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Center Pvt. Ltd. is to provide radio
imaging services for medical diagnostic purposes.

K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. (herein referred as "KMC Investment”) is a private limited company domiciled in
Nepal. Itis incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2077/12/16. It operates from its registered office
situated in ward no-9 Sinamangal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Principal activities of K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. is to
make investment in financial sectors, financial market, housing, real estate and similar activities.

Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Services Pvt. Ltd. is a private limited company domiciled in Nepal. It
isincorporated under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2078/04/08. It operates from its registered office situated
in ward no-9 Sinamangal, Kathmandu, Nepal. The primary activity of Kasthamandap is to operate CT Scan
Service, other lab services & sell medical and surgical supplies.

geeil anfifep giddeer eoco/eocq | 9
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The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the cash
flow statement which is prepared, on cash basis, using the indirect method.

The financial statements comprise Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the accounts. The significant accounting
policies applied in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are set out below in point no. 3.

These policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes in accounting
policies disclosed specifically.

The Financial Statements of the Group which comprises components mentioned above have been
prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 2018 (hereafter referred as NFRS) issued
by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal, endorsed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and
in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

Reporting Period is the period from the first day of Shrawan (Mid July) of any year to the last day of Ashad
(Mid July) of next year as per the Nepali calendar.

Nepali Calendar English Calendar

1st Shrawan 2080 to 17 July 2023 to
Current Year Period 32nd Ashadh 2081 15th July 2024

15t Shrawan 2079 to 17 July 2022 to
Previous Year Period 31t Ashad 2080 16% July 2023

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements of the
Group as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.

The Financial Statements of the Group are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates. Financial information has been presented in
Nepalese Rupees.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities reported in the financial statements. The management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revisions into accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in the current and future periods. Most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty, and
critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have effect on financial statements are as follows:

The entity has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including
future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources while an assessment of the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that it has the resources to continue its business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
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doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate
or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements are continued to be prepared on the going
concern basis.

The company has appliedits accounting policies consistently from year to year except for some comparatives
which have been grouped or regrouped to facilitate comparison, correction of errors and any changes in
accounting policy that have been separately disclosed.

The Institute of chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has issued new NFRS called NFRS 2018 with the
decision of the 244" council dated 11th Ashad 2077 which has prescribed some new standards to be
applicable from 16th July 2021.

The new Standards issued and are mandatory from financial year 2078-79 (2021-22) are set out below:

a. NFRS9“Financial Instruments’, NFRS 14“Regulatory Deferral Accounts’, NFRS 15“Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, NFRS 16 “Leases’, NFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” & NAS 29 “Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies” are applicable from 16th July 2021, and

b. All other standards under NFRS 2018 are applicable from 16th July 2020.

NFRS 9“Financial Instruments”is the new NFRS standard introducing new provisions regarding Impairment
of financial assets and hedging. It replaces standards NAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”and NFRS 9 (2013) “Financial Instruments”.

NFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” is the new NFRS standard governing the accounting
principles for revenue. It replaces standards NAS 11 “Construction Contracts”and NAS 18 “Revenue”. As per
the provision of Para 60 of NFRS 15 “effects of the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
to by the parties to the contract (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the entity with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component. A significant financing component may exist
regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract orimplied by the payment
terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

As per the provision of Para 61 of NFRS 15 “The objective when adjusting the promised amount of
consideration for a significant financing component is for an entity to recognize revenue at an amount
that reflects the price that a customer would have paid for the promised goods or services if the customer
had paid cash for those goods or services when (or as) they transfer to the customer (i.e., the cash selling
price). An entity shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether a contract contains
a financing component and whether that financing component is significant to the contract, including
both of the following: (a) the difference, if any, between the amount of promised consideration and the
cash selling price of the promised goods or services; and (b) the combined effect of both of the following:
(i) the expected length of time between when the entity transfers the promised goods or services to the
customer and when the customer pays for those goods or services; and (ii) the prevailing interest rates in
the relevant market”.

As per the Para 62 of NFRS 15 “Notwithstanding the assessment in paragraph 61, a contract with a customer
would not have a significant financing component if any of the following factors exist: (a) the customer
paid for the goods or services in advance and the timing of the transfer of those goods or services is at
the discretion of the customer. (b) a substantial amount of the consideration promised by the customer
is variable and the amount or timing of that consideration varies on the basis of the occurrence or non-
occurrence of a future event that is not substantially within the control of the customer or the entity (for
example, if the consideration is a sales-based royalty). (c) the difference between the promised consideration
and the cash selling price of the good or service (as described in paragraph 61) arises for reasons other than
the provision of finance to either the customer or the entity, and the difference between those amounts
is proportional to the reason for the difference. For example, the payment terms might provide the entity
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or the customer with protection from the other party failing to adequately complete some or all of its
obligations under the contract”

By following the above provision, we have not discounted the amount of revenue due to immateriality of
transaction.

NFRS 16 “Leases” changes the recognition of leases by lessees. It replaces NAS 17 “Leases”. NFRS 16 requires
lessees to recognize a right to use asset and a liability for future payments arising from a lease contract. If
a lessee elects not to apply the requirements in paragraphs 22-49 to either short-term leases or leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee shall recognize the lease payments associated with
those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis.
The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the
lessee’s benefit.

There are no any lease commitment pending for more than twelve months as per agreement concluded
between lessor and lessee.

The Company has applied NAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation (2013), NAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurements (2013) and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures (2013) and NFRS-
9 Financial Instruments (2013) for the recognition, presentation, classification & disclosure related with
Financial Instruments. Similarly, NFRS 15 Revenue for booking revenue and NFRS 16 Leases for booking
Leases has been applied.

Few carve- outs as follows on applicable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal have been used by the company:

Entity has used carve out on Para 9 of “NAS 39 Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement “issued
by Accounting Standard Board, Nepal as on 20 November 2019.

In relevant standard, Para 9 explains that, the calculation of effective interest includes all fees and points
paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Under allowed alternative treatment of under Carve Out the calculation of effective interest includes
all fees and points paid or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably,
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see NAS 18 Revenue),
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting
is material.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
Financial Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

The Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where the
standards require otherwise.

Further, the financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the cash flow
information, which is prepared, on a cash basis, using the indirect method.

The Group’s financial statements comprise consolidated financial statements of the KMC and those of the
following entities:

a. The subsidiary, in accordance with NFRS 10-“Consolidated Financial Statements”

b. The proportionate share of the profit or loss and net assets of the Associate Company in accordance
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with NAS-28“Investments in Associate and Joint Ventures”
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method when control is transferred
to the Group as required under NFRS 3-“Business Combination”.

Applying the acquisition method requires:
» Identifying the acquirer.
» Determining the acquisition date

» Recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets required, the liabilities assumed and any
non- controlling interest in the acquire; and

» Recognizing and measuring goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase

On the date of acquisition, the Group recognizes goodwill to the extent that the aggregate of items
listed below exceeds the net amount of the identifiable assets required and the liabilities assumed,
all measured in accordance with NFRS 3, which in general is the fair value.

The aggregate of below items:

» The consideration transferred;

» Fair value of any non - controlling
» Interest in the acquire; and
>

In case of business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair values of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquire.

Where the amount calculated for goodwill results in a negative figure, it is accounted for as a gain
from a bargain purchase and is recognized in profit or loss, following the due process stated in
NFRS 3.

Non- controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the Subsidiary’s identifiable
netassets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the parents interest in a Subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are acquired for as equity transactions. This in effect is the adjustment made in
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non- controlling interests to reflect the changes in
their reference interests in the Subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Company. The company has following subsidiary
companies:

» KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplies Pvt. Ltd.

» Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Service Pvt. Ltd
» Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd

» KMCInvestment Pvt. Ltd.

During fiscal year 2073/74 KMC has hold 21.01% shareholding in Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic
Centre Pvt . Ltd which was accounted for Investment in Associate.

Subsequently in reporting period 2074/75, KMC has purchased additional 70.11% shares in
Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd which has changed its status from associate to
subsidiary. Total investment in Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd till reporting date is
91.12% (i.e. 503,000 shares out of total 552,000 shares of AIDC).

KMC has 100% holding in KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplies Pvt. Ltd. for all the reporting period
and all previous comparative periods presented.

geeil afifep giddeer eoco/eocq | 4



KMC has 100% holding in KMC Investment Pvt. Ltd. for the reporting period and all previous
comparative periods presented.

KMC has 100% holding in Kasthamandap Diagnsotic and Medical Services Pvt. Ltd. for the reporting
period and all previous comparative periods presented.

When the parents loses control over a Subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
former subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial position.

However, the parents has not lost control over its any subsidiaries.

The effect of all intra — Group transactions and outstanding balances, including realized and
unrealized income and expenses are eliminated in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with bank and financial institutions and money
at call and at short notice. These are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used
by the Group in the management of short-term commitments.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Notes to the Financial Statements.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes ‘regular way trades. Regular
way trade means purchases or sales of financial assets that required delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose and
characteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial instruments are measured
initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of such
financial instruments except in the case of such financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, as per the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).
Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
i. Financial assets held for trading
ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
(b) Held to Maturity Financial Assets
(c) Loans and Receivables
(d) Financial assets available for sale

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.
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A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-
term profit or position taking. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal
Accounting Standards (NAS) 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in‘Net trading income’. Dividend income is recorded in ‘Net trading income’when
the right to receive the payment has been established

The Group evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether
the intention to sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the group may elect to reclassify these financial assets. Financial assets held for
trading include instruments such as government securities and equity instruments that have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

The Group designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstances:

» Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets.

» The assets are part of a Group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

» The assets contain one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or losses are recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net gain or loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or losses’in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned is accrued
under ‘Interest income, using the effective interest rate method, while dividend income is recorded under
‘Other operating income’when the right to receive the payment has been established.

The Group has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities which the Group has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After the initial
measurement, held to maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate, less impairment. The amortization is included in‘Interestincome’in the Statement
of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than:

» Those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that the company,
upon initial recognition, designates as fair value through profit or loss.
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» Those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as available for sale.

» Those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment through
contractual cash flows, other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate, less allowance for impairment. Within this category, loans and advances to the
customers have been recognized at amortized cost using the method that very closely approximates
effective interest rate method. The amortization is included in ‘Interest Income’in the Statement of Profit
or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Impairment charge / reversal for loans and
other losses’in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified as
‘Available for Sale’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for neither Trading nor ‘Designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other comprehensive income /
expense’in the ‘Available for sale reserve.

At the inception, the Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities. Accordingly financial
liabilities are classified as:

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
i. Financial liabilities held for trading
ii. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

(b) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to
initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and
changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term
profit or position taking. This category includes derivative financial instrument entered into by the company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

However, the Group does not have any derivative financial instruments.

The Group designates financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at following circumstances:

»  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities.

» The liabilities are part of a Group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy

» The liability contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows
that would otherwise have been required under the contract.
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Financial instruments issued by the Company that are not classified as fair value through profit or loss are
classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to another
Company, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another Company under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the Company or settling the obligation by delivering variable number
of the Company’s own equity instruments.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a Group of
similar financial assets) when:

» Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
» The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or

» The Grouphas assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when and only when the Group has a legal right to set off the recognized amounts and it
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income
and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under NFRSs or for gains and losses arising
from a Group of similar transaction such as in trading activity.

The Amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

‘Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy as per NFRS 13:
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Level 1 input are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date. (PARA 76)

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. (PARA 81)

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. (PARA 86)

The Group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market if available. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and
regularly occurring market transaction on arm’s length basis.

Further, all unquoted equity investments are recorded at cost.

One of the categories of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is “held for trading” financial
assets. All financial assets acquired or held for the purpose of selling in the short term or for which there is
a recent pattern of short-term profit taking are trading assets.

A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to the change in an underlying
variable such as an interest rate, commodity or security price, or index; that requires no initial investment,
or one that is smaller than would be required for a contract with similar response to changes in market
factors; and that is settled at a future date.

The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of
services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than
one period. The Company applies the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 (Property,
Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these assets. Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably measured.

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its
cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of an item of property, plant& equipment. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to a working condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalized as part of computer equipment. When parts of an item of property
or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

The Group has not applied the revaluation model to any class of freehold land and buildings or other
assets. Such properties are carried at a previously recognized GAAP Amount.

On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognized in ‘Other comprehensive
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income’and accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used to reverse a previous revaluation decrease
relating to the same asset, which was charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the
increase is recognized as income to the extent of previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount
is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other Comprehensive
income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the capital reserve in respect of that asset.

The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity
under capital reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred
directly to retained earnings on retirement or disposal of the asset.

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized
in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that
part will flow to the Group and it can be reliably measured. The cost of day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated by using the written down value (WDV) method on cost or valuation of the
Property & Equipment, freehold land and leasehold properties. The rates of depreciations are given below:

Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)

Buildings 3% 3%
Leasehold Properties 20% 20%
Furniture & Fixture 15% 15%
Electronic and Office Equipment 20% 20%
Transport Devices 15% 15%
Hospital & Scientific EQuipment 15% 15%
Other Assets 15% 15%
Library Books 10% 10%

Depreciation on newly acquired property, plant and equipment are charged from the day in which it
was acquired. Depreciation of property and equipment ceases when it is de-recognized at the time of its
disposal.

The methods of depreciation of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each financial
year.

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and
machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of an asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or losses arising from de-recognition of
an item of property, plant and equipment is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is
derecognized. When replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection
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costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of
inspections is derecognized.

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the Asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there
been no impairment loss.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An intangible
asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially
measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense
by the Group in previous annual Financial Statements or interim Financial Statements are not recognized
as part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later date.

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the Company,
which are not integrally related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified, reliably measured,
and it's probable that they will lead to future economic benefits, are included in the Statement of Financial
Position under the category ‘Intangible assets’ and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable
the asset to generate future economic benefits more than its originally assessed standard of performance
and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed
as incurred.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or
Loss from the date when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful economic life based on a
pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the KMC. Amortization methods, useful
lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. The Company
assumes that there is no residual value for its intangible assets.

Computer Software 5 Years 5 Years

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition of an item of intangible assets
is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.
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The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible Assets
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine
the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the
extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an
asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the owner or by
the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both but not for sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently all
investment properties (without exception) are reported at fair value with any gains or losses in fair value
reported in the income statement as they arise. The fair value used is that which the property could be
exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction and should reflect
market conditions at the balance sheet date. If any property is reclassified to investment property due to
changes in its use, fair value of such property at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting.

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use
since no future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made to and from investment property only
when there is a change in use. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as Property,
Plantand Equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies.

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes), tax expense is the aggregate amountincludedin
determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense
is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive
income. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences except:

» Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of transaction, affects
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neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax
credits and unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that the taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized except:

» Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at
the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

» Inrespectof deductible temporary differences associated with investmentsin Subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to income taxes
imposed by the same taxation authority.

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation at that date. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited has made arrangements with various foreign Universities for
conducting research programs. The approved budget received from Donor is utilized for the completion of
the research programs.

Details of Movement of Fund in Ongoing Projects are as follows:

1 KMC -LNU COLLABORATION PROJECT 285,089 - - 285,089
2 KMC/LNU LGB RESEARCH-PAYABLE 149,466 - - 149,466
3 KMC/NTNU ADVANCE-2 PROJECT 8,414 5,961,330 3,804,038 | (2,157,293)
4 LOWN PROJECT (HARVARD UNIVERSITY) 336,480 336,480 - -
5 I[J?\j\:y/ERPSF:'?YJ)ECT - N (HARVARD - 1,169,348 1,169,348 -
6 NORHED PROJECT (2,110,408) 4,010,837 2,291,220 3,830,026
7 THE BRISK PROJECT - PAYABLE 14,515 - - 14,515
8 SAFE TRIP (NIRC) 846,832 48,575,895 | 57,039,011 93,09,948
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9 NIHR FUND LIABILITY (41,94,012) 14,462,536 23564617 49,08,069
10 | HIPCARE PROJECT - (4,709,221) - | (4,709,221)
11 HVT MOTORCYCLE SAFETY PROJECT - 1,867,397 3,214,627 1,347,230

3.13 Employee Benefit

1.

Gratuity

The gratuity benefits to the staffs were to be provided as per old KMC Staff Service Byelaws 2067 for staffs
completing five years of service as follows: a) at the rate of half of monthly salary for 5-10 years period, b)
at the rate of one-month basic salary for 10-15 years period, ) at the rate of one and half of monthly basic
salary for 15-20 years period, d) at the rate of two months basic salary for above 20 years period.

After the revision in the staff service by-laws, new KMC Staff Service Byelaws 2077 has been formulated.
Accordingly, the gratuity scheme to be provided to the staffs were revised. As per the new scheme, the
gratuity was to be provided for staffs completing ten years of service as follows: a) at the rate of half of
monthly basic salary for 10-15 years period, b) at the rate of one-month basic salary for 15-20 years period,
¢) at the rate of one and half of monthly basic salary for above 20 years period.

Actuarial Assumption:

» The attrition assumption should be the Employer’s best estimate of future attrition rates, reflecting
both regular attrition and redundancies and current attrition rate applied is 15%.

» The salary escalation assumption should be Employer’s best estimate of future salary increments,
reflecting both annual as well as promotional salary increments current salary escalation rate is 8%.

» 100% of Nepali Assured Lives Mortality (NALM), 2009 An excerpt from the table is shown below for
ready reference.

Age Rate
20 0.000924
30 0.000977
40 0.000168
50 0.004436
60 0.011162
70 0.024058
80 0.061985
920 0.163507

» Thediscount rate should be based on the yield to maturity on high quality corporate bonds having
term similar to that of the liability. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market yields on government bonds shall be used. The currency and term of the bonds should be
consistent with the currency and estimated term of plan liabilities. The discount rate used is 9%.

The discount rate shown above is with reference to market yields on Citizen Saving Saving Bonds ('Nagarik
Bachat Patra 2083’) issued by Nepal Rastra Bank

*The term of the citizen saving bond from which the discount rate above is sourced. However, the DMT (in
section 9.1) of the liability may be higher, and thus the discount rate can also be expected to be higher.
This is a modelling limitation due to the unviability of required yield curve data. However, using a lower
discount rate results in higher liability and hence is a prudent approach.

Gratuity Report as per NAS19

Actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability as per the new gratuity scheme M/s Insured Tech Actuary in
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FY 2080-81, which is an independent consulting firm with domain expertise in the fields of actuarial and
financial valuation, actuarial and insurance consulting, risk management and strategic management
advisory. Management has decided to perform actuarial valuation once every three years and
estimates that yearly movement in Plan Liability would not be significant.

Defined benefit obligation (liability) :15,26,59,647.96
Fair Value of Plan assets :97,326,472.44
Fund status / Surplus (Deficit) :(5,53,33,175.52)

The new gratuity scheme was not accepted by the employees and the decision regarding finalization of
the gratuity scheme to be provided to the employees is pending in the court. As such, management has
decided not to reduce the liability as per the actuarial valuation until the gratuity scheme is finalized by the
court in line with NAS 19 Employee Benefits, read along with NAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors under the principle of conservatism.

The company has policy to provide 12 days as sick leave and 18 days as home leave.

At the end of every year (July), any sick leave balance in excess of 45 days is automatically enchased and at
the end of every year (July), any home leave balance in excess of 45 days is automatically enchased.

Actuarial Assumption:

» The attrition assumption should be Employer’s best estimate of future attrition rates, reflecting
both regular attrition and redundancies. The current attrition rate for leave calculation is 5%.

» Thesalaryescalation assumption should be the Employer’s best estimate of future salary increments,
reflecting both annual as well as promotional salary increments. The current salary escalation rate
for leave calculation is 8%.

» 100% of Nepali Assured Lives Mortality (NALM), 2009 An excerpt from the table is shown below for
ready reference.

20 0.000924
30 0.000977
40 0.000168
50 0.004436
60 0.011162
70 0.024058
80 0.061985
90 0.163507

» Thediscount rate should be based on the yield to maturity on high quality corporate bonds having
term similar to that of the liability. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market yields on government bonds shall be used. The currency and term of the bonds should be
consistent with the currency and estimated term of plan liabilities. The discount rate used is 9%.

Financial Summary is as follows:

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 20,696,228.27 1,81,66,709.21

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognized.
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Premises are taken are on lease which are operating in nature. The expenses under operating leases as per
the lease agreement are charged to other operating expenses in the statement of profit and loss. NAS 17,
“Leases” is applied for accounting leases.

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized as
trading gains or losses in the statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at average exchange rates
and resultant differences are recognized as revaluation gains or losses in the statement of profit and loss
account.

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in equity during the reporting
period comprise income and expenses recognized in the statement of financial performance, plus
contributions from holders of equity claims, minus distributions to holders of equity claims.

The Group presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The formula used to calculate a company's diluted EPS is the Group’s net income minus preferred dividends
divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding plus the impact of convertible preferred
shares and the impact of options, warrants, and other dilutive securities. However, there is no need to
calculate diluted EPS.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved
by the Company’s shareholders. Interim Dividend is deducted from equity when they are declared and no
longer at the discretion of the Company. Dividend for the year that is approved after the reporting date is
disclosed as an event after the reporting date.

The cash flow statement has been prepared using ‘The Indirect Method, whereby gross cash receipts and
gross cash payments of operating activities, finance activities and investing activities have been recognized.

The comparative figures and phrases have been rearranged wherever necessary to confirm the current
year’s presentation.

The following explanatory information relating to figures presented in the statement of financial position
and in the statement of profit or loss is presented in this section.

Holding Company:
The company does not have any holding company.

Subsidiaries:

Toglt anfias madger ooco/e0cq | 39



The company has following subsidiary companies:

KMC Pharmacy and Medical Supplies Private Limited 100% holding of KMC

Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd 503,000 shares out of total 552,000 shares

2 i.e. 91.12% holding of KMC
3 K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. 100% holding of KMC
4 Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Service Pvt. Ltd. 100% holding of KMC

The Company has entered following nature of transactions with above subsidiaries:

The nature of transaction entered into with KMC Pharmacy and Medical Supplies Private Limited
includes Representation in Board of Directors, assists in overall operation and management,
Purchase of medicines and surgical items, charging of monthly rent, Charging of common
administrative expenses etc. All these transactions occurred as arm’s length transactions.

The nature of the transaction entered into with Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd
includes Representation in Board of Directors, assists in overall operation and management, rental
and electricity charges received. The company had also taken an interest free short-term loan
from AIDC. All these transactions occurred as arm’s length transactions.

The nature of the transaction entered with K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd includes Representation in
Board of Directors, Assists in overall operation and management etc. The Company has taken an
interest-free loan & advance from KMC Investment. All these transactions occurred as arm’s length
transactions.

The nature of transaction entered with Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Service Pvt. Ltd
includes Representation in Board of Directors, assists in overall operation and management, rental
income received for its building provided to KMC Hospital and Management expense payment
for operation of Lab Plant & Machinery, House Space, required consumables and employee from
KMC Hospital. The company has also provided interest free loan & advance. All these transactions
occurred as arm’s length transactions.

The company does not have any associates.

Any shareholders of the parent entity who has control, joint control or significant influence over the entity
are classified under other related parties of the company and ssuch parties are as follows:

1 Nobel Medical College Teaching Hospital Pvt. Ltd 20.34%
2 Mrs. Indira Baral 15.52%
5 Mr. Ishan Sharma 10.19%
3 Mrs. Soina Sharma 9.69%
4 Mr. Prarsata Pandey 5.61%
6 Charity International Nepal 3.73%
7 Mr. Kamal Prasadh Gyawali 3.52%
8 Mr. Om Prasad Pandey 3.13%
9 Mr. Hom Devi Neupane 1.38%
10 Dr. Sunil Kumar Sharma 1.26%
11 Mr. Sulabh Panta 1.02%

The Parent does not have any fellow subsidiary companies.
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Key Management Personnel (KMP):

According to the NAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the activities of the entity. Related
party also includes Close Family Member (CFM) of Board of directors.

KMPs of the company includes following persons:

S. No. Name of key management personnel Position
1 Soina Sharma Executive Chairman
2 Homa Devi Neupane BOD and Shareholder
3 Netra Bandhu Baniya BOD and Shareholder
4 Chudamani Bhandari BOD and Shareholder
5 Dr. Sandip Guragain BOD and Shareholder
6 Sunil Kumar Sharma Shareholder and CFM of BOD
7 Indira Sharma Baral Shareholder and CFM of BOD
8 Ishan Sharma Shareholder and CFM of BOD
9 Prof Dr. Ratindra Nath Shrestha Principal

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Short-term employee benefits 78,91,059.31

Post-employment benefits - -

Total

(c) Related Party Transactions:

Key
Managerial
Personnel

Holding

Total
Company

. Fellow
Associates

LA RS Subsidiaries

Particulars

Hospital Income

Rental Income

Received 106,000,000

1,200,000 10,72,00,000

Management Fee

Received

Sale of Property, Plant
& Equipment

Hospital Supplies
Purchase

Interest Expense Paid

Rental Expense Paid (1,200,000) | (106,000,000) (10,72,00,000)

(d) Related Party Balances:

Fellow LG

Particulars

Holding

Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Subsidiaries

Managerial

Total

Personnel

Trade Receivables |30,770,222 16,105,965 46,876,187
Other Non-Trade 66,978,900 66,978,900
Receivables

Trade Payables (16,105,965) (16,105,965)
Other Non-Trade (66,978,900) (66,978,900)
Payables

Other Payable (30,770,222) (30,770,222)
Loan & Advance

Payables
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There were no other related party transactions with other board members and key management personnel;
transactions, if any, with directors, related and key management personnel, related entities which occurred
in the normal course of company’s operations were conducted on terms no more favorable than similar
transactions with other customers.

4.2 Medium and Long-Term Loans

The Group has the following mid- and long-term loan.

Details of loans Loan amount (NPR)

NIMB-Fixed Term Loan 516,694,000
SBL Fixed Term Loan 1,720,180,000
Total 2,236,874,000

With consideration of carve out provide as referred in Note 2.6 in effective rate computation, financial
liability is not amortized.

4.3 Event after reporting period

The parent received a letter from Inland Revenue Department (IRD), Large Tax Payer office, Harihar Bhawan
for reassessment of income tax of the company for the FY 2079/80 as on 2081.02.06 but demand &
assessment order is pending.

4.4 Regrouped/Rearrangement

Previous Years'Figures have been regrouped/ rearranged to have comparative view of Financial Statements.
The figures stated in Financial Statements have been rounded off to a nearest rupee.The Fee realizable
during the next year has been categorized separately in the head of other current assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

For the year ended 31 Ashadh 2081

Property Plant & Equipment 5.1
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Property Plant & Equipments 3,739,868,718 3,859,145,108| 2,395,322,260 2,543,913,784
Capital Work in Progress - 16,618,793 - 16,618,793
Total 3,739,868,718 3,875,763,902 2,395,322,260 2,560,532,578
Investment 5.2
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Investment in Subsidiaries - - 374,012,197 364,012,197
Total - - 374,012,197 364,012,197
Other Non Current Assets 5.3
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Deposits 19,810,519 19,810,519 19,810,519 19,810,519
Total 19,810,519 19,810,519 19,810,519 19,810,519
Inventories 5.4
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year | CurrentYear | Previous Year
e - :
Inventories 9,151,787 8,732,842 9,151,787 8,732,842
Total 54,548,540 48,619,809 9,151,787 8,732,842
Other Current Assets 5.5
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Loans and Advances 3,220,081 1,834,000 - -
Deposits 1,295,330 1,295,330 - -
Other Receivable 135,546,177 169,048,459 156,148,046 198,714,858
Trade Receivables 44,417,708 14,483,794 - -
Vat Receivable 1,345,394 1,901,118 - -
Prepaid expenses 9,153,032 7,470,639 8,920,904 7,457,599
Receivables from related parties 10,000,000 - - -
Fees Receivable From Students 781,447,732 781,447,732
Total 986,425,454 196,033,339 946,516,682 206,172,457
3.5.1 Trade Receivable
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Considered Good
Trade Receivable 44,417,708 14,483,794 - -

Considered Doubtful

Trade Receivable

less: Provision for Impairment

Total

44,417,708

14,483,794

All trade receivables are considered good.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.6
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cash in Hand 33,351,322 1,664,413 31,587,172 523,565
Balances with BFls 9,057,013 22,187,798 2,817,460 17,497,310
Total 42,408,336 23,852,211 34,404,632 18,020,875
Current Tax Assets 5.7
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets 83,105,377 71,769,865 64,022,048 55,091,162
Tax Assets of Prior Periods - - - -
Current Tax Liabilities
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 34,907,998 20,781,617 29,782,040 17,904,199
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods 48,197,379 50,988,247 34,240,008 37,186,963
Total
Trade & Other Payables 5.8
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Trade Payable 340,856,232 349,574,547 265,044,487 286,955,110
Deposits from Parties 1,508,842 10,908,842 200,000 9,600,000
Duties & Taxes 3,220,182 398,707 - -
Other Payable 256,085,175 208,810,100 218,216,474 205,111,321
Endowment Fund 518,209 518,209 501,402 501,402
Total 602,188,640 570,210,406 483,962,363 502,167,832
Group KMC
5.8.1 Other Payables Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Salary, Wages & Incentives Payable 112,472,951 107,841,870 112,310,405 107,704,272
Insurance Claim - 94,014 - 94,014
Kathmandu University Payable 20,653,818 20,653,818 20,653,818 20,653,818
Taxes & duties payable 36,724,100 29,620,110 28,722,545 28,821,204
Audit fees payable 691,300 1,384,900 512,900 1,256,300
Commission & Other Payable 10,409,562 2,689,472 10,409,562 2,689,472
Dividend Payable 22,012,280 24,255,519 22,012,280 24,255,519
Staff bonus payable 26,252,350 20,142,595 23,594,964 19,631,771
Other payables 26,868,815 2,127,801 - 4,950
Total 256,085,175 208,810,101 218,216,474 205,111,321
Short Term Borrowing 5.9
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Bank overdraft & demand loan-
current - 147,420,349 - 147,420,349
Total - 147,420,349 - 147,420,349
Other Current Liabilities 5.10
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
If:r:fxitnzo”'on of Long term 221,706,000 66,450,000 204,746,000 53,830,000
Current Portion of Studens deposits 75,746,845 66,631,836 75,746,845 66,631,836
Total 297,452,845 133,081,836 280,492,845 120,461,836

Toglt anfas madger coco/e0cq | ¥3




. STl Ufeshe ol Ufsoeh foafide

Long Term Borrowing 5.11
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Secured bank loans- non current 2,236,874,000 2,145,125,089 1,223,114,000 1,117,536,000
Less: Secured bank loans- current Portion (221,706,000) (66,450,000) (204,746,000) (53,830,000)
Total 2,015,168,000 2,078,675,089 1,018,368,000 1,063,706,000
Deferred Tax 5.12
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Deferred Grant Liabilty 15,924,050 19,905,063 15,924,050 19,905,063
Deferred tax liability 68,841,389 64,797,949 64,238,797 60,788,539
Total 84,765,439 84,703,012 80,162,848 80,693,603
Other Non-Current Liabilities 5.13
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations 76,029,404 61,887,478 76,029,404 61,887,477
Non current portion of refundable deposit - 38,000,000 - 38,000,000
Advance from Advance Imaging 66,978,900 - 66,978,900 66,978,900
Other Non Current Liabilities 984,045,102 399,774,300| 1,060,706,002 418,444,174
Total 1,127,053,406 499,661,778 1,203,714,306 585,310,551
Share capital 5.14
Grou KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Ordinary shares 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
Total 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
5.14.1 Ordinary Shares Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Authorized Capital

10,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Issued capital

10,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Subscribed and paid up capital

5,509,553 General Share of Rs.100 each

500,000 Staff Share of Rs.100 each

6,009,553 Ordinary share of Rs 100 each 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
Total 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
5.14.2 Ordinary share ownership Grou KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Domestic ownership
Other 100% 100% 100% 100%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
5.15
Reserve and Surplus Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Grant assets reserves 732,355 915,445 732,355 915,445
Retained earnings 156,357,523 93,725,467 144,359,525 112,837,514
CSR Reserve 869,124 710,543
Total 157,959,003 94,640,912 145,802,423 113,752,959
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 Ashadh 2081

Revenue 5.16
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Revenue KMC 1,108,960,551 1,070,560,217| 1,108,960,551 1,070,560,217
Sales Pharmacy 244,500,092 77,653,194 - -
Sales AIDC - - - -
Radiology Income -KDMS 150,503,887 65,880,350 65,880,350 -
Income KMC Investment - - - -
Total 1,503,964,530 1,214,093,761 1,174,840,901 1,070,560,217
Group KMC
5.16.1 Admission and Tuition Fees Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Admission Fees - MBBS 211,953,054 242,280,137 211,953,054 242,280,137
Admission Fees - BDS 24,410,050 48,122,670 24,410,050 48,122,670
Admission Fees - BPT 3,367,000 8,158,500 3,367,000 8,158,500
Tuition Fees - MBBS 262,560,553 222,059,197 262,560,553 222,059,197
Tuition Fees - BDS 53,296,271 49,488,631 53,296,271 49,488,631
Tuition Fees - B. Sc. Nursing 27,912,165 30,146,720 27,912,165 30,146,720
Tuition Fees - BPT 8,074,923 3,095,594 8,074,923 3,095,594
Tuition Fees - BNS 1,637,890 1,979,306 1,637,890 1,979,306
Clinical Charges from PG 131,803,139 114,701,151 131,803,139 114,701,151
Total 725,015,045 720,031,906 725,015,045 720,031,906
Grou KMC
5.16.2 Hospital Income Current Year Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Operation Charges 106,473,801 103,510,368 106,473,801 103,510,368
Bed Charges 120,549,524 85,223,347 120,549,524 85,223,347
X-Ray, ECG, Echo., Endoscopy 44,371,043 39,206,328 44,371,043 39,206,328
Other Hospital Charges 60,380,536 38,519,988 60,380,536 38,519,988
Ultrasound Charges - 32,918,608 - 32,918,608
Registration Charges 22,610,171 18,693,205 22,610,171 18,693,205
Dental Income 12,031,643 14,083,720 12,031,643 14,083,720
Dialysis Income 17,528,788 11,544,052 17,528,788 11,544,052
Pathology Charges - 6,828,695 - 6,828,695
Total 383,945,506 350,528,311 383,945,506 350,528,311
Other Income 5.17
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Rental Income 212,882,437 188,497,058 269,087,996 140,005,391
Hostel Income 57,660,468 43,724,035 57,660,468 43,724,035
Project Income 67,310,261 21,219,644 67,310,261 21,219,644
Other Miscellaneous Income 1,934,353 15,449,408 1,493,991 10,345,310
Safe Mother Child Programme Income 8,416,700 8,263,200 8,416,700 8,263,200
Internship, Examination & Other Charges 1,274,630 7,551,520 1,274,630 7,551,520
Amount Transferred from Deferred Income 4,164,102 5,104,675 4,164,102 5,104,675
Electricity Charge/Rebate/Received 3,125,125 2,488,544 3,125,125 2,488,544
Interest Income 214,016 662,997 147,262 546,804
Scrap Sales 1,043,210 588,385 1,043,210 588,385
Forensic Income- Autopsy Posting 1,232,240 444,400 1,232,240 444,400
University Grant - 350,000 - 350,000
Application Fees 412,500 256,096 412,500 256,096

Toglt s Tadger 00co/20Cq | ¥¥,



. STl Ufeshe ol Ufsoeh foafide

Discount Received 1,156,455 - 1,156,455 -
Water Supply Income 4,400 - - -
Foreign Exchange Income 605,799 605,799
Total 361,436,696 294,599,962 417,130,737 240,888,005
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 5.18
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Hospital supplies and Tools 54,424,040 33,112,718 54,424,040 33,112,718
Chemicals & glasswares 20,470,601 15,773,877 20,470,601 15,773,877
Printing, stationery and reproduction costs 7,913,878 6,397,137 7,913,878 6,397,137
X-Ray films and chemicals 4,052,396 3,843,965 4,052,396 3,843,965
Cleaning material 4,074,797 3,468,128 4,074,797 3,468,128
Oxygen 8,439,416 3,165,006 8,439,416 3,165,006
Housekeeping & linen expenses 2,929,267 2,321,436 2,929,267 2,321,436
KMC Pharmacy COGS 179,390,291 57,662,745 - -
Total 281,694,686 125,745,013 102,304,395 68,082,268
Personnel Expenses 5.19
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Wages and salaries and other benefits 460,985,145 439,375,767 458,021,426 438,291,839
E\Tltfx:gci“p'ta' Service and Incentive 96,102,779 70,784,193 96,102,779 70,784,193
Contributions to defined contribution 17,081,609 14.327.372 16,896,455 14221301
plans (SSF)
Contributions to defined contribution plans (PF) 12,198,927 13,638,384 12,198,927 13,638,384
Leave encashment 4,802,788 8,903,356 4,802,788 8,903,356
Staff Bonus 12,355,486 6,756,555 10,208,924 6,245,732
Staff gratuity Expenses (Actuary Valuation) - - - -
Total 603,526,734 553,785,627 598,231,299 552,084,804
Administrative Expense 5.20
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Service Outsourcing Expenses 63,747,701 56,823,220 54,326,603 52,052,796
Electricity expenses 35,524,988 29,537,186 35,524,988 29,537,186
Security expenses 27,290,052 25,363,582 27,290,052 25,363,582
Repairs & maintenance expenses 25,104,137 22,798,124 24,778,419 22,798,124
Consultancy charges 31,757,466 22,432,862 31,757,466 21,312,862
Project Expensess 60,796,266 20,279,551 60,796,266 20,279,551
Hostel Management Expenses 16,887,850 17,212,160 16,887,850 17,212,160
Insurance premium 18,662,782 16,614,185 18,539,277 16,508,160
Affiliation and Recognition Fees - 11,605,760 - 11,605,760
Foreign Exchange Loss - 11,208,981 - 11,208,981
Academic & examination expenses 11,552,835 8,685,391 11,552,835 8,685,391
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,822,861 8,158,097 2,619,584 7,967,361
Advertisement & publicity 4,873,271 7,373,517 4,740,528 7,348,037
Fuel expenses 7,045,175 6,652,210 7,045,175 6,652,210
Fees & renewal 6,392,877 6,112,665 6,360,512 6,061,565
Reception & refreshment 6,736,501 6,052,567 6,087,941 5,647,227
Management Fee - - - -
Rental expenses 2,702,239 1,709,073 3,902,239 2,909,073
Poor Patient fund Expenses - 3,843,878 - 3,843,878
CMC Expenses 7,406,133 2,307,123 7,406,133 2,307,123
Safe Mother Child Programme Expense 2,026,800 2,046,200 2,026,800 2,046,200
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Transportation & conveyances 1,788,848 1,792,447 1,690,057 1,673,036
Cleaning Expenses 2,052,860 1,672,128 2,052,860 1,672,128
Charity Expenses 60,000 1,493,300 60,000 1,493,300
Health Camp Expenses 1,435,110 1,435,450 1,435,110 1,435,450
Inspection & Supervision Expenses 305,510 1,369,550 305,510 1,369,550
Telephone, fax email, internet etc 1,256,110 1,352,274 1,228,873 1,340,489
Newspaper and Magazine & printing 859,153 1,013,348 621,993 873,321
Internal Audit Fees 2,355,813 950,667 2,355,813 950,667
Bank Charges 296,605 769,918 293,594 766,446
Audit fees 740,600 740,600 565,000 565,000
Legal fees 765,205 578,520 614,445 569,520
Flooring Expenses 1,041,774 453,346 1,041,774 453,346
Water supply & purification expenses 400,835 404,816 400,835 404,816
IT Audit Fees 576,300 384,200 576,300 384,200
Welfare Expenses 568,772 335,789 568,772 335,789
Research Grant Expenses - 230,000 - 230,000
Office supplies expenses 528,430 211,369 - -
TADA 51,850 133,650 51,850 133,650
Guest House Expenses - 112,645 - 112,645
Meeting fees 127,072 34,896 127,072 34,896
Fine and penalty 4,028,724 17,619 4,023,724 16,619
Postage & Communication 6,072 10,872 5,597 10,762
Cargo & Courier 18,125 7,390 18,125 7,390
Credit Rating Expenses 71,981 - - -
Loss on SSF Receivable 425,440 -
Total 352,091,125 302,321,125 339,679,973 296,180,245
Depreciation & Ammortisation 5.21
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Depreciation on property and equipment 225,789,279 183,463,918 222,934,835 180,793,152
Depreciation on investment property - - - -
Impairment of PPE - - - -
Total 225,789,279 183,463,918 222,934,835 180,793,152
Finance Costs 5.22
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Interest on borrowings 237,445,845 260,932,315 135,071,966 143,125,184
Other Finance Costs (NFRS Adjustment) 23,582,257 8,725,256 23,582,257 8,725,256
Total 261,028,102 269,657,570 158,654,223 151,850,439
Income Tax Expense 5.23
Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current tax expense 34,907,998 20,781,617 29,782,040 17,904,199
Current year 38,695,963 20,781,617 29,782,040 17,904,199
Adjustments for prior years (3,787,964) - - -
Deferred tax expense - - - -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 4,043,440 (3,997,547) 3,450,258 (3,967,368)
Changes in tax rate - - - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
Total 38,951,438 16,784,071 33,232,298 13,936,831
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